COMHAIRLE CHONTAE NA GAILLMHE

Ceantar Bardasach Chonamara

Municipal District of Conamara

Minutes of the Municipal District of Conamara held on Friday 10*" of
September 2021 at 9.30a.m. in the Council Chamber, Aras an Chontae,
Prospect Hill, Galway

ILATHAIR:

CATHAOIRLEACH: Clir. Seamus Walsh

BAILL: Comh./Clir. G. King, E. Mannion, P. Mac An lomaire, A.
McKinstry, D. O Cualdin, T. O Curraoin, N. Thomas & T.
Welby

Oifigh: M. Owens, Director of Services, D. Pender, A/Director

of Services, L. Hanrahan, Director of Services, D.
Mitchell, Senior Engineer, R. Lowe, A/Senior Engineer,
D Flood, Senior Executive Engineer, ). Kerins, Executive
Engineer, I. Martyn, A/Administrative Officer, C. Walish,
A/Staff Officer

1. Confirmation of Minutes of an Ordinary Meeting of the Municipal District of Conamara
held on Friday, 11th June 2021 CMD 21048

On the PROPOSAL of Comh. T. O’Curracin, SECONDED by Cilr. N. Thomas the members
AGREED the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the Municipal District of Conamara held on
Friday 11" June 2021.

Pagelof13



Matters Arising

Clir. E. Mannion noted that Clifden Beach had excellent monitoring results recently and
commented that she hoped it would continue for the September results.

Comh. P. Mac An lomaire queried available parking spaces for caravans in Ros a Mhil, he
stated it would be good if they could be ready for next years’ season. Mr. D. Mitchell advised
that he was waiting on a response from the Municipal District.

Clir. A. McKinstry questioned whether the contract was appointed for the Clifden Flood relief
scheme. Mr. D. Mitchell confirmed that tenders had been issued but that he would need to
clarify if the contract was awarded.

On the PROPOSAL of Clir. E. Mannion, SECONDED by Clir. A. McKinstry a vote took place to
determine whether Item 4 from the agenda should be deferred to allow more time to
consider the report.

FOR [4] AGAINST [5]
Comh. P. Mac An lomaire Combh. D. O’Cualdin
Clir. €. Mannion Comh. T. O Curraoin
Clir. A. McKinstry Clir. G. King
Cllir. T. Welby Clir. N. Thomas

Cllr. S. Walsh

The proposal to defer the item to allow more time to consider the report was NOT AGREED.

Confirmation of the Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Municipal District of Conamara
held on Monday, 21st June 2021 CMD 21049

On the PROPOSAL of Cllr. E. Mannion, SECONDED by Clir. N. Thomas, the minutes of the
Special Meeting of the Municipal District of Conamara were AGREED.

Matters Arising

Clir. N. Thomas raised a query in connection with a comment at a previous meeting in
relation to the Causeway Bridge inspection and the manner in which the inspection was
undertaken.

Comh. D. O O’Cualdin requested clarification on whether the funding allocation for the
Causeway Bridges needed to be spent by the end of the year. He stated that it was very
important that there is an opportunity to review the report prior to the commencement of
waorks.

Comh. P. Mac An lomaire questioned when the report would be finalised.

Page 2 0f 13



Mr. D. Mitchell confirmed that he was in receipt of the report, however a number of queries
were raised arising from same and he awaited a response and clarification. He advised that
he currently didn’t have a date for its completion. He indicated that the Causeway Bridge
funding was a multi-annual program and there was an expectation to use the funding
allocation this year due to safety concerns. He also stated that he expected the funding to
be rolled over into the following year if it had not been used and it would be part of the
roads program.

Clir. E. Mannion praised the Local Area Offices for their work over the summer season, she
commented on the public toilets, bins, beaches, and the additional provision of lifeguards
during the heatwave, she hoped to see the work continue and a plan for a busy summer
season next year.

Clir. G. King seconded Cllr. Mannion’s comments, he also queried when the Beach Bye-laws
would be updated.

Mr. M. Owens confirmed that the current Beach Bye-laws dated from 1997 and it would be
a significant piece of work to update. He stated that it would be added to the following
years’ work program and would be advanced by the SPC with an opportunity for input by
the Members of the Municipal District.

3._Declaration of Roads to be Public Roads — Section 11 of Roads Act 1993 at: CMD 21050

a) Road commencing at junction with L-1320-5 (53.33130, -9.19569) in the townland of Coill
Bhruachlain and extending South East for a distance of 355m in the townland of Coill
Bhruachlain and finishing at {53.32977, - 9.19312) in the townland of Coill Bhruachlain.

On the PROPOSAL of Clir. N. Thomas SECONDED by Clir. A. McKinstry the Members
APPROVED the declaration of the following road to be a public road, the statutory procedure
having been complied with:

(b) Road commencing at junction with L-52330-0 (53.25840, -9.65552) in the townland of Tir an
Fhia and extending south east for a distance of 190m in the townland of Tir an Fhia and
finishing at (53.25706, - 9.65412) in the townland of Tir an Fhia.

On the PROPOSAL of Comh. D. O Cualdin SECONDED by Comh. P. Mac An lomaire the
Members APPROVED the declaration of the following road to be a public road, the statutory
procedure having been complied with:

Page 30f13



{c) Road commencing at junction with L-53955-0 (53.25367, -9.27740) in the townland of An Sian
Rua and extending North for a distance of 235m in the towntand of An Sian Rua and finishing
at (53.25524, - 9.27528) in the townland of An Sian Rua.

On the PROPOSAL of Comh. T. O Curraoin SECONDED by Comh. D. O Cualdin the Members
APPROVED the declaration of the following road to be a public road, the statutory procedure
having been complied with:

(d) Riverfall, Clifden

1. Road pavement and footpath, commencing at public road N59 and extending North for
approximately 60m and ending at house No.7 The Spires (all in the townland of Clifden).

2. Road pavement and footpath, commencing with house No. 7 Riverfall and extending
westwards for a distance of approximately 60m and ending at house No.1 Riverfall {all in the
townland of Clifden).

On the PROPOSAL of ClIr. E. Mannion SECONDED by Comh. P. Mac An lomaire the Members
APPROVED the declaration of the following road to be a public road, the statutory procedure
having been complied with:

e) The Spires, Clifden

1. Road pavement and footpath, commencing at house No. 7 The Spires and extending North
for approximately 180m and ending at house No.26 The Spires (all in the townland of Clifden).
2. Road pavement and footpath, commencing with house No. 11 The Spires and extending
westwards for a distance of approximately 40m and ending at house No.6 The Spires (all in
the townland of Clifden).

3. Road pavement and footpath, commencing with house No. 16 The Spires and extending
eastwards for a distance of approximately 55m and ending at house No.24 The Spires {(all in
the townland of Clifden).

On the PROPOSAL of Clir. E. Mannion SECONDED by Clir. G. King the Members APPROVED
the declaration of the following road to be a public road, the statutory procedure having been
complied with:

Pagedofl3



(f} Racecourse Lawns, Clifden

1. Road pavement and footpath, commencing at house No. 1 Racecourse Lawn and extending
North for approximately 105m and ending at house No.10 Racecourse Lawn (all in the
townland of Clifden}.

2. Road pavement and footpath, commencing with house No. 8 Racecourse Lawn and
extending eastwards for a distance of approximately 40m and ending at house No.13
Racecourse Lawn (all in the townland of Clifden).

3. Road pavement and footpath, commencing with house No. 11 Racecourse Lawn and
extending southwards for a distance of approximately 105m and ending at house No.20
Racecourse Lawn (all in the townland of Clifden).

On the PROPOSAL of Clir. G. King SECONDED by Clir. E. Mannion the Members APPROVED
the declaration of the following road to be a public road, the statutory procedure having been
complied with:

{g) Racecourse Hill, Clifden

1. Road pavement and footpath, commencing at public road L- 5124 and extending south for
approximately 46m and ending at house No.10 Racecourse Hill {(all in the townland of Clifden).
2. Road pavement and footpath, commencing with house No. 5 and extending eastwards for
a distance of approximately 97m and ending at house No.18 (all in the townland of Clifden).

On the PROPOSAL of ClIr. G. King SECONDED by Clir. E. Mannion the Members APPROVED
the declaration of the following road to be a pubiic road, the statutory procedure having been
complied with:

Clir. E. Mannion welcomed the taking in charge of the estates acknowledging the various
issues that gave rise to the timeframe for the process to be undertaken and successfully
completed.

Clir. T. Welby queried the length of time involved in the Taking in Charge process. Mr. D.
Mitchell explained that the Clifden estate was a large estate with various issues to be
addressed.

Page 5 0f 13



Clir. S. Walsh commented that Taking in Charge was a reserved function of the Elected
Members and accordingly was exercised at the discretion. Mr. D. Pender clarified that if a
vote was taken in relation to Taking in Charge by the members then the road/estate would
be taken in charge,

{4) To consider the report under Part 8 of Planning & Development Regulations 2001 (as
amended), proposal for the construction of 31no. new dwelling houses at Bdthar an
tSleibhe, Maigh Cuilinn, Co. Galway consisting of 27no. two storey two bed dwellings, and
4no. two storey three bed dwellings. Proposals include new junction with existing road L-
1320, relocation of existing bring bank, associated CCTV and parking; relocation of access

roads, footpaths/cycle tracks, boundary treatments, public lighting, parking, new

connections to existing services and all associated site development works — as detailed
in LA 10/21. CMD 21051

Ms. R. Lowe introduced the proposal for the construction of 31 new dwelling houses
at Bothar an tSléibhe, Maigh Cuillin, Co. Galway. Mr. L. Hanrahan gave details of the
Conamara housing waiting list, detailing the numbers on the list in the localities of Maigh
Cuillinn, Conamara Central and Bearna. He also outlined the potential for more basketball
courts in the area if the construction of the 31 dwelling houses went ahead. He stated that
the Mountain Road flooding would be dealt with by the Infrastructure & Operations
department before the housing estate would be built. He confirmed that 5 mature trees
would need to be removed from the area and he commented that there were no trails/paths
for walking through the site. He believed that the tenants in the proposed estate would have
the option to buy their homes in the future which could lead to long-term owner-occupied
properties.

Clir. N. Thomas referred to recent private planning applications in the area, which were
refused for different reasons, but which included flooding and drainage issues, designs
characteristics and roads. He mentioned one of the conditions of the Part 8 which indicated
that the flood issues in the area would need to be dealt with and he believed that permission
would not be granted for a private development on a similar basis. He commented that there
was no overflow or oversized attenuation tank in place and he advised that the area was
flooded the previous day and he stated it was almost impossible for traffic to pass. He also
expressed the view that the design was not in character with the area and was not sensitive
to the typography of the site which is mentioned in the Maigh Cuillinn Local Area Plan. He
believed that building a retaining wall could create problems, that the design was an issue,
and it wasn’t supporting the biodiversity plan. He noted that the planning file itself was not
on Galway.ie which was a serious flaw, providing no access to the documentation. He pointed
out that the proximity to the bring banks caused a lot of nuisance for residents. He mentioned
that the woodland area was good for biodiversity in the area, a recent report stated that the

Page 6 0of 13



trees had a high value. He concluded that he didn’t think the Part 8 plan addressed any of the
issues in the area.

Clir. A. McKinstry supported the Part 8 but with slight amendments. He expressed that the
country was in the middle of a housing crisis, and this was the first direct build of social
housing in Maigh Cuillinn. He stated that the location of the proposed estate was the best
area to choose, 150 metres from the center of Maigh Cuillinn. Cllr. McKinstry suggested that
housing needs to be condensed to towns and villages as otherwise, the Council will have to
purchase one off dwellings for relatively elderly people, and that will increase reliance on
motor vehicles. He raised some issues with the design of the houses and he referred to them
as very traditional and carbon dependent. He noted the compromise of removing trees to
provide housing and stated that the housing was desperately needed, as more people are
going on the social housing list rather than being removed from it. He stated the drainage and
resurgence problem should be resolved and further works on sewerage management should
be addressed before construction goes ahead and added that more community services
should be included. He expressed that he would like to see the plan to fix flooding before a
decision was made to go ahead with the development,

Clir. 5. Walsh commented that he had the same level of passion for retaining the right to build
one- off dwellings in Conamara as his colleague Clir. McKinstry expressed for the proposed
development.

Comh. D. O Cualdin requested confirmation of the number of elderly persons and persons
with disabilities that would be housed in the proposed estate.

Mr. Hanrahan confirmed that there were 26 households over the age of 65, 25 between 58-
65 years and between 30-40 individuals with physical and mental disabilities. He clarified that
the people on the top of the list would be allocated the homes.

Ms. Lowe briefed the members on the technical matters they had queried. Regarding the
drainage matters; the estate is designed specifically to eliminate the requirement to discharge
to the existing surface water drainage system. An extensive attenuation system is proposed.
This is in recognition that the existing surface water system in the adjacent local road requires
works, and the Infrastructure and Operations Unit has given a firm commitment that works
will be completed in this area prior to the houses being occupied. In response to comments
regarding road design; Ms. Lowe advised that the relevant stage Road Safety Audit had been
completed, and that the roads and junction were designed in accordance with the
appropriate standards.

Ms. Lowe also indicated that several ‘green measures’ were included in the
proposal; permeable lawns would permit natural filtration and houses would be designed to
NZEB standard (Nearly Zero Energy Building standard). The NZEB standard means that houses
will not be reliant on fossil fuels for heating, and houses will be constructed to an A2 energy
rating — resulting in highly insulated warm, comfortable, energy efficient homes. Ms. Lowe

Page 7 of 13



also stated that the proximity of the development to the town centre can be expected to be
a key factor in reducing reliance on car transport.

Ms. Lowe in response to issue raised acknowledged that bring banks can cause noise issues.
The bring banks however, are already in this location - they are proposed to be relocated only
a short distance. Ms Lowe said if another suitable site could be identified — that might be
welcome, and the Councit would be open to considering that.

In response to the loss of biodiversity/ woodland, Ms Lowe acknowledged that trees would
be loss due to this proposed development but stated that the majority of the Galway County
Council-owned land in this area would remain unaffected by this proposal, and the
landscaping plan has been designed to include native planting. She suggested that the
proposed housing estate road could be utilised to gain access to the woodland to the rear and
perhaps over time community woodland trails could be developed.

Ms. Lowe updated the members on the technical matters they had queried and advised that
she was aware of the drainage issue, that the estate is designed on a self-contained water
drainage system for infiltration and attenuation and that the Infrastructure & Operations
department were currently working on a solution for the issue. Ms. Lowe indicated that
permeable landscaping would be used to allow for natural filtration and that a road safety
audit would be carried out. She noted that bring banks can cause noise issues, however the
current location is very convenient, but a possible other site could be identified in the future
if required. She stated that the proximity to the town centre was the greatest advantage for
the estate as it is within walking distance, she commented that in the design of the
development there is no solid fuel, air to water would be used, and she assured that standards
are high which will create warm, comfortable and energy efficient homes.

Clir. N. Thomas commented that social housing must be built responsibly. ClIr. S. Walsh added
that an integrated housing scheme would work better than a social housing scheme. Clir.
Walsh emphasised that a housing emergency is not an excuse for irresponsible development.

Clir. A. McKinstry noted that the proposed development was imbedded beside existing
estates, and that it was not a huge development. He reiterated that building houses further
up the Mountain road was not suitable.

Comh. T. O Curracin commented that there was no mention of communities in the
development plans, he suggested that every area needs between 20-30 acres of community
land. He explained that he didn’t agree with S-year plans, he believed that there should be a
40-year plan, reviewed every 5 years. Comh. T. O Curraoin expressed the view that Maigh
Cuillinn is a great area, and that development needs to be moved outward, to not crowd
people together. He stated that the location should be kept for a community area and an
alternative site for the development.

Page 8 of 13



Clir. S. Walsh acknowledged and agreed with Comh. T. Q. Curraoin comments. Clir. E.
Mannion stated that she was shocked by the comments, she stated there was very little
consideration being given to the people on the housing waiting list. She drew attention to
the members helping people who want a one-off dwelling but stated that the members need
to help here also. She mentioned that there were several social housing estates in Clifden,
and good, fine peaple live in them, she challenged that there was more anti-social behaviour
in private estates. She mentioned another social housing estate in Roundstone and explained
that the development was welcomed in the area. She concluded that social housing provides
security for people which schemes like HAP cannot provide, she hoped that the Council could
give 31 families hope and agree the Part 8.

Comh. D. O Cualdin stated that if these homes were for elderly persons and people with
disabilities that they were not well-designed. He noted that the bedrooms were upstairs and
there was no shower facility downstairs which raised big concerns. He indicated that it was
not accurate that these houses were for the elderly and people with disabilities.

Mr. Hanrahan indicated that not all people with disabilities on the waiting list had physical
disabilities. He commented that he was not against rural/once off dwellings and there were
over 50 people on the waiting list in the area.

Clir. T. Welby agreed with the comments Cllr. Mannion raised. He mentioned a story of a
constituent; a single parent with a 12-year-old child, who has lived in 11 different properties
in their lifetime. He reaffirmed that County Galway needs housing, and that he had received
several emails in relation to this development. He addressed some of the comments of the
other members; in relation to the site being used as an amenity for Maigh Cuillinn. He stated
the area was too big and is completely open which makes it difficult to rule out anti-social
behaviour. He claimed that a facility during the day can become a den for night-time use and
that it may not be safe after 6p.m. He stated the ground is in a desperate condition and needs
significant work. Comh. P. Mac An lomaire commented that since July he had received calls
from four different individuals that have had to move because landlords are selling.

Ms. R. Lowe reminded the members that the location is a 14-acre site, and only 30% would
be used for this development. She advised there would be available land remaining after the
development and it could be used as amenity and recreation area, she stated that the Council
had already been approached about adding basketball courts to the area.

It was PROPOSED by Clir. N. Thomas SECONDED by Comh. T O Curraoin not to proceed with
the proposed development. As the motion was not agreed the Cathaoirleach called for a vote
and the result was as follows:

Page90of 13



For [4] Against [5]

Combh. P. Mac An lomaire Comh. D. O Cualain
Clir. E. Mannion Combh. T. O Curraoin
Cllr. A. McKinstry Clir. G. King
Clir. T. Welby Clir. N. Thomas

Cllr. S. Walsh

The motion not to proceed with the development was CARRIED.
Clir. E. Mannion thanked Ms. Lowe and Mr. Hanrahan for their hard work on the Part 8.

(5} Municipal District of Conamara Director’s Business. CMD 21052

No items were raised for discussion under Director’s Business.

(6) Municipal District of Conamara Cathaoirleach’s Business. CMD 21053

(a) To consider and if deemed appropriate request the commencement of the statutory
process for the extinguishment of the public right of way on the L-52452 Cill Chiaran.

Clir. 5. Walsh requested that the Infrastructure & Operation department prepare a report as
soon as possible in relation to the extinguishment of the public right of way on the £-52452
Cill Chiaran to include consideration of alternative access and the declaration of the
alternative access as a public road. Mr. D. Mitchell replied that the department had no
difficulty in engaging with the relevant people to investigate the process. He aimed to have
an update for the next meeting.

(b) To consider a report on Probable Cause(s) of the Pollution incident(s) in Bearna (Mag's
Boreen Beach)

Ms. A. Dolan updated the members in relation to recent water quality issues in Bearna. She
referred to last year’s submissions - the areas that were identified were Mags Boreen/Bearna
pier, inlet stream. She informed the members that HSE monitoring took place between the
1°* June — 15" September, with several samples having high levels of bacteria which is an issue

for concern.

She outlined that Mags Boreen had a high level of bacteria but is now back in compliance. She
advised that Bearna Pier was an area for concern as youths jump off the pier, and there had
been a number of high bacteria results, she commented that this is to be expected as the
stream flows into Bearna Pier. Ms. Dolan advised the members that bathing time ends on the
15" September and the Environment department would review the results in order to make
a decision whether to continue monitoring the areas the following year. Ms. Dolan indicated

Page 10 of 13



that she thought monitoring should continue for another year. She explained that Bearna
beach was not included as there are only so many resources available. She further advised
that a lot of work was being carried out to determine the cause of bacteria, that they wanted
to confirm if there was any physical discharge in the area but noted that there was no
evidence of such yet. She stated that there was only one discharge licence in the area, she
confirmed that the Environment section is to complete septic tank inspections in the area, to
rule out any issues. She indicated that a technician noted in an inspection that there was
livestock in the area; cattle using the stream as a water source, she said they may need to
remove access if it causes a problem. She concluded that safety of the sites is the most
important matter and access to the bathing areas for the public.

Combh. T. O Curraoin outlined he received complaints in relation to Mags Boreen and Bearna
Pier. He queried how many households were attached to the sewerage system in Bearna and
commented that there was no quick solution to the problem, but it was good that it was being
investigated.

Ms. A. Dolan couldn’t confirm how many households were attached to the sewerage scheme,
she believed that it could be an issue with septic tanks and noted that problems like this are
usually caused by discharge.

Cilr. A. McKinstry commented that year-round swimming had become popular and could be
key to the development of tourism. He stated it would be good if monitoring could continue
in those areas.

Ms. A. Dolan explained there woutdn’t be much traction to monitor all year round as the cost
analysis was not good but confirmed there was an expert bathing water group assessing the
idea.

{7) Votes of Sympathy / Congratulations. CMD 21054

Comh. T. O Curraoin wished the Mayo football team the best of luck in the All freland Final.

Clir. N. Thomas congratulated Aifric Keogh and Fiona Murtagh at their success at the 2020
Olympics.

On the PROPOSAL of ClIr. S. Walsh and SECONDED by Comh. T O Curraoin, the members
AGREED that all the Olympians and Paralympians should be congratulated with special note
to the Galway team members listed below.

Galway Olympians

Aifric Keogh, Na Forbacha (Furbo), Galway - Won a Bronze Medal for Women’s Four Rowing

Fiona Murtagh, Maigh Cuillinn, Co. Galway — Won a Bronze Medal for Women’s Four
Rowing

Page 11 of 13



Eimear Lambe, Dublin - Won a Bronze Medal for Women’s Four Rowing
Emily Hegarty, Cork - Won a Bronze Medal for Women’s Four Rowing
Cathal Daniels, Loughrea, Co. Galway — Eventing, Equestrian

Cillin Greene, Cregmore, Co Galway - Mixed 4x400m relay, Athletics
Lydia Gurley, Athenry, Co. Galway — Cycling (Reserve}

Robert McDonnell, Galway - Athletics, Mixed 4x400m (Reserve)

Galway Paralympians

Ronan Grimes, Athenry, Co. Galway — Cycling
Patrick O’Leary, Galway resident — Co. Cork native

The Cathaoirleach was joined by the members in commending the work of Mr. Sean Groarke
as Meetings Administrator for the Conamara MD who had recently retired from the Council,
they commented that they appreciated his time and effort over the years.

Mr. M. Owens on his own behalf and on behalf of the executive and staff also added his best
wishes for Sean on his retirement, he said that he was a pleasure to work with, with special
note for his dedicated service to the Conamara Municipal District.

(8) A.0.B, CMD 21055

Comh. D. O Cualain informed the meeting that he was contacted regarding a serious concern
from the Principal in Scoil Salerno, he stated that there had been several near misses on the
road in front of the school as there is no pedestrian crossing. Mr. D. Mitchell replied that the
Council were unsuccessfut in securing a crossing at the school in the past, however he
indicated there was a new initiative, and it could be looked at again.

Clir. N. Thomas spoke on behalf of ClIr. G. King regarding the works on N59, he queried if the
works were completed in relation to verge trimming on the N59 and the surrounding local

roads.

Combh. T. O Curraoin inquired about the bus-shelters and if there was a timeline to spend the
allocated funding. Mr. D. Mitchell confirmed that the bus-shelter funding can be carried over
to the following year. He stated that the National Transport Authority have a fixed design for
the bus stops and advised that they would carry out any maintenance works. He outlined that
to receive funding for a shelter a bus must stop at a location at least 5 times each day.

Comh. P. Mac An lomaire queried if the spraying of invasive species on the side of the road,
and hedge trimming would commence in the upcoming few weeks. Cllr. E. Mannion
mentioned that the N59 road was overgrown

Page 12 of 13



On the PROPOSAL of CllIr. S. Walsh and SECONDED by Comh. T. O Curraoin it was AGREED to
review the public lighting in the vicinity of Padraicins Pub , Na Forbacha.

Mr. Mitchell advised that he would refer the matter to his colleague Ms. Holland who is
responsible for public lighting.

Clir. S. Walsh asked Mr. M. Owens if he could look at the change in the members pay and
expenses, he specifically mentioned the vouched expenses. Clir. N. Thomas agreed with Clir.
Walsh, he stated that members were entitled to expenses for office equipment as along as it
was reasonable. He claimed that the advice from the Department and Galway County Councit
was different.

Mr. M. Owens said that the members expenses were updated from 1% July, 2021 and the
Council awaited further instruction and the changes would be implemented retrospectively
to that date. He stated that Corporate Services would issue advice, and that the previous
vouched expenses would be clarified.

It was noted that the next scheduled meeting would be held in October.

CHRIOCHNAIGH AN CRUINNIU ANSIN

Submitted Signed and Approved
Cathaoirleach: A@Jrﬂ”’) 1

Date:

Page 13 of 13






